



# European Chamber of Commerce in Vietnam Medical Devices & Diagnostics Sector Committee Code of Ethical Conduct for Interaction with HCPs

Adopted on the 22<sup>nd</sup> of August, 2019 First amendment: effective 01 August 2024

# Contents

A. Preamble
B. Applicability of the Code
C. Definition
D. Ethical Principles
1. Collaborative interactions to preserve independent decision- making and public confidence 3
2. Interactions with Healthcare Professionals
2.1 Cultural Gifts, Event Stationeries, and Educational Support Items
2.2 Meals Associated with HCP Business Interactions
2.3 Evaluation/ Sample/ Demonstration Products
2.4 Honoraria and Agreements for HCP's Scientific or Educational Services
2.5. Member Support of Third Party Educational Events (both in-person/virtual events)
2.6 Member Organized or/and Supported Medical Technology Training and Education (both in- person/virtual programs)
2.7. Research and Educational Grant7
2.8 Charitable Donations
2.9 Market research
2.10 Product information
3. Product quality commitment
4. Trade promotion
5. Fair competition in doing business
6. Trainings
7. Monitoring & Controlling10
7.1 General principles
7.2 Controlling mechanism
8. Management of the Code11
General Questions
About Virtual and Hybrid interactions
About Section D.2.1: Cultural Gifts, Event Stationeries, and Educational Support Items





About Section D.2.8: Charitable Donations	13
About Section 2.5: Member Support of Third Party Educational Events (both in-person/virtual events)	14
About Section 2.6: Member Organized or/and Supported Medical Technology Training and Education	15
About Local Distributors	16
About Data Privacy	16

# A. Preamble

The Medical Devices & Diagnostics Sector Committee (MDDSC) members represent the diversity of the Medical Devices and Diagnostics industry, with companies operating in fields like (without limitation to) wound care solutions and artificial joints, endoscopes and catheters, in vitro diagnostics and high-volume disposable devices, and large imaging equipment such as CT's and MRI's.

Member companies are foreign owned Medical Devices and Diagnostics manufacturers or foreign owned distribution companies representing such manufacturers in Vietnam. The MDDSC is open to all such international companies, no matter if their headquarters are based in Europe or on other continents, as the aim of the group is to unify the voices of all international industry players in Vietnam, which face similar challenges and opportunities and share the same aim to support the development of healthcare in the country.

Our group operates under the management of an Executive Board with six members and has three Working Groups all working towards achieving the above.

# **B.** Applicability of the Code

This Code of Ethical Conduct ("Code") is effective as of the 2<sup>nd</sup> of October, 2019.

The MDDSC Code of Ethical Conduct promotes ethical interactions between the medical devices and diagnostics technology industry and healthcare professionals to advance the MDDSC Mission. The purpose of this Code is to promote ethical interactions between MDDSC's corporate members that develop, manufacture, sell, market, or distribute medical devices and diagnostics technologies in Vietnam ("Members") and those individuals and entities that use, recommend, purchase, or prescribe medical devices and diagnostics technologies in Vietnam.

Members commit to adhere to this standard by adopting and abiding by the ethical principles outlined in this Code. This Code is subject to the laws of Vietnam. If a provision in law or another code of conduct applicable to a Member is more restrictive than the corresponding provision in this Code, the Member shall adhere to the more restrictive provision in the law or other code of conduct. Likewise, if a provision in this Code is more restrictive than the corresponding provision in law or another code of conduct applicable to a Member, the Member shall adhere to the more restrictive provision in this Code as it relates to the Member's business operations in or concerning Vietnam.

It is required that a Member ensures that its third-party intermediaries (including consultants, distributors, sales agents, and brokers) appointed by the Member who may interact with HCPs in connection with the Member's medical devices and/or diagnostics technologies agree to conduct their interactions in accordance with applicable laws and ethical principles at least as restrictive as those contained in this Code.





# **C. Definition**

**Healthcare Professional** ("**HCP**") means any individual or entity (with a clinical or non-clinical role - whether a government official, or employee or representative of a government agency or other public or private sector organisation - including, but not limited to, physicians, nurses, technicians, laboratory scientists, researchers, research coordinators, or procurement professionals) that in the course of their professional activities may directly or indirectly purchase, lease, recommend, administer, use, supply, procure, or determine the purchase or lease of, or who may prescribe medical and diagnostics technologies or related services.

**Professional Association** is a regional, national, or specialty clinical or other professional body representing HCPs.

**Healthcare Organisation** ("**HCO**") means any legal entity or body (irrespective of its legal or organisational form) that is a healthcare, medical, or scientific association or organisation which may have a direct or indirect influence on the prescription, recommendation, purchase, order, supply, utilisation, sale, or lease of medical and diagnostics technologies or related services such as a hospital or group purchasing organization, clinic, laboratory, pharmacy, research institution, foundation, university, or other teaching institution or learned or professional society (except for patient organisations); or through which one or more HCPs provide services.

Member means a full corporate member ("Member Company") of MDDSC.

**Branded Items** mean items with either name or logo of Member or/of product of the Member of MDDSC.

**Third Party Educational Event** is a conference or meeting that is of a medical, scientific, and/or educational nature, intended to promote scientific knowledge, medical advancement, and/or the delivery of effective health care, and organized by a Professional Association, Healthcare Organisation, or by a bona fide medical or other professional education provider.

# **D. Ethical Principles**

# 1. <u>Collaborative interactions to preserve independent decision - making and public confidence</u>

The MDDSC recognizes that collaborative interactions between Members and HCPs are essential to advancing medical devices and diagnostics technology and ensuring the safe and effective use of Members' products and services. Ultimately, such interactions are to the benefit of patients.

The MDDSC is committed to ensuring that these interactions meet the highest ethical standards, preserve HCPs' independent decision-making, and reinforce public confidence in the integrity of patient care, treatment, and product and service selection.

All interactions with HCPs whether in a physical, virtual, or hybrid settings (i.e. combination of physical or virtual interactions) must be:

- (a) conducted in compliance with applicable laws and codes of conduct;
- (b) based on the best interests of the patient; and
- (c) appropriately documented.

In promoting or advertising their products and services to HCPs, Members must ensure that they comply with applicable laws and codes of conduct. No off-label use for a product to be promoted until the





requisite approval has been given by the Ministry of Health. All statements must be true, accurate, and substantiated.

#### 2. Interactions with Healthcare Professionals

#### 2.1 Cultural Gifts, Event Stationeries, and Educational Support Items

For avoidance of doubt, gifts in this section are not promotional items using in registered trade promotion programs in compliance with relevant local laws and regulation including but not limited to Commercial Law.

# **2.1.1 Cultural Gifts**

Gifts may never directly or indirectly be given to an HCP or HCO (even through Third Parties). This prohibition of gifts includes the following:

- (a) Items which are neither educational nor patient related (e.g. office supplies, scrubs, electronic equipment capable of personal use, mugs), even if of minimal value, and irrespective whether such items are branded (with a company or product name or logo) or not;
- (b) Cultural courtesies such as cookies, wine, tobacco, flowers, chocolates, gift baskets, holiday gifts or cash/cash equivalents (e.g. gift cards, vouchers), irrespective of the occasion (e.g. major life events such as birthday, birth, wedding, demise, etc).

Members must neither provide nor arrange recreation activities or entertainment for HCPs. Recreation activities and entertainment include theatre, sporting events, golf, skiing, hunting, and leisure or vacation trips.

#### 2.1.2 Event Stationery

During Member's organized events, Members may provide non-branded stationery to help participants take notes, review material, or to take away the materials/hand-outs/related scientific materials from the event. It can be applied to third party events where Members have satellite activities such as satellite symposia/workshops. It cannot be considered as a door gift.

Members must ensure that sales of products and services are never made based on an HCP receiving anything of value from a Member. The total value of stationery items (including pen, notepad, document holder, USB, etc.) must not exceed VND 200,000 (excluding VAT) per HCP per event.

#### **2.1.3 Educational support items**

Educational items must serve a direct and genuine (medical and scientific) educational function directly relating to the HCP's practice or directly serve Patient Education purposes in the practice area of such HCP. Educational item may be given with or without company logo or brand name.

The total value for items of educational items that a Member may give to an HCP must be less than VND 8,000,000 per HCP per year and must be less than VND 2,000,000 per HCP per occasion.

Educational items that enhance patient care, must never be given to HCPs/HCOs, or medical institutions, organizations, or associations for the personal benefit of the HCP or to influence recommendation, prescription, purchase, or usage of medicines or medical devices and must never be formative of a quid pro quo arrangement.

#### 2.2 Meals Associated with HCP Business Interactions

Meals and refreshments provided to HCPs must be modest in value and subordinate in time and focus to the business part of the meeting/ legitimate business discussion.





The location and venue of any meeting with an HCP must be suitable for and conducive to the exchange of business or scientific information.

Members must not provide recreation or entertainment in conjunction with any interactions with an HCP.

Members must not invite or meet the expenses of anyone accompanying an HCP to an event unless that individual has a separate and legitimate need to attend the meeting or business discussion.

# 2.3 Evaluation/ Sample/ Demonstration Products

A Member may provide its medical devices and diagnostics technology products to HCPs without any charge or any commercial commitment for evaluation and demonstration purposes, subject to the following principles:

- They must not be provided as a means of inappropriate inducement to purchase product or as a rebate based on the volume or value of the business generated by the recipient HCP;
- They are appropriately documented and accounted for by the Member, including to minimize any risk of the HCP being able to financially benefit from the products;
- Only reasonable quantities of evaluation products are supplied to HCPs to familiarize them with the products and enable them to gain experience with the products in their practice. The duration allotted to HCPs for product evaluation or demonstration purpose shall be appropriate in accordance with either product use or performance and in compliance with applicable local laws and regulations. Company products provided for this purpose are typically expected to be used in patient care without any patient charge, include single use products (e.g., consumable or disposable products) and multiple use products (sometimes referred to as "capital equipment"). The number of single use products provided free of charge should not exceed the amount reasonably necessary for the adequate evaluation of the products under the circumstances. For example, no more than 2 diagnostics reagent kits of the same kind per laboratory or HCO may be provided per year. Multiple use products may only be provided for a period of time that is reasonable under the circumstances to allow an adequate evaluation. The terms of an evaluation of such multiple use products should be set in advance in writing. Members should retain title to such multiple use products during the evaluation period and should have a process in place for promptly removing such multiple use products from the HCP's location at the conclusion of the evaluation period unless the HCP purchases or leases the products.
- The demonstration products are normally used for the HCP and patient awareness, education, and training. Hence, demonstration products typically are not intended to be used in patient care. If not meant for such patient care or human use or diagnostics purposes, the products must be marked "Not for human use", "Sample" or "Not for diagnostic purposes" or with similar language to indicate that the products are solely for demonstration purposes and that they cannot be sold or used for human clinical studies or routine patient management.

#### 2.4 Honoraria and Agreements for HCP's Scientific or Educational Services

Members or Member's employees or any third- party intermediary representing the Member's interest or on the Member's behalf may engage or contract with HCPs, HCOs, institutions, organizations or associations of HCPs (hereinafter referred to as "professional consultant") for professional, valuable, bona fide services (hereinafter referred to as "service" or "services") to the Member itself or on its behalf if supported by the following elements:





- It is directly in relation to clinical research; scientific development; development and/or research in areas relating to the Member's products and/or its business; participation on advisory boards; sharing experience, training, and education of other HCPs on the safe and effective use of the Member's products and services or associated procedures; presentations at scientific events; professional translation; and/or other legitimate services.
- The agreement or contract or engagement must be in writing specifying in detail the services to be provide. The agreement or contract must be signed by both parties in advance of service execution and must not be in breach of any laws or regulation or both parties respective policies.
- The selection of the professional consultant should be based on the professional consultant's legitimate "license to operate", consultant qualifications, and expertise in dealing with the defined service engaged. The professional consultant shall not be selected in any event based on the volume or value of the business generated by that professional consultant.
- The honorarium paid to the professional consultant must be fair market value and not a means of inappropriate inducement. In no event shall an honorarium be paid by cash on hand, but must be by cash in bank via bank transfer. If the professional consultant is an entity or organization, the honorarium must be transferred to the bank account of the entity or organization, not to the personal bank account of an employee of the entity or organization.
- In addition to the above, the Member should design its own control process to ensure that the service is engaged and executed in compliance with the signed agreement or contract and that the services were provided in accordance with the agreement or contract.

# 2.5. Member Support of Third Party Educational Events (both in-person/virtual events)

**2.5.1** Member support of a Third Party Educational Event shall at all times preserve the independence of medical and scientific education. A Third Party Educational Event must primarily be dedicated to promoting medical, scientific, and educational activities and discourse, and must be initiated by the Third Party Educational Event organizer.

**2.5.2** Any Member's decision to support a Third Party Educational Event must be based on sufficient information to enable the Member to evaluate the medical, scientific, and educational merit of the Third Party Educational Event, as well as the appropriateness of the venue and agenda. Members should not seek to inappropriately influence the program content, selection of faculty, educational methods, or materials at the Third Party Educational Event.

**2.5.3** Under no circumstances shall a Member's support of a Third Party Educational Event be to induce an HCP to use, recommend, purchase, or prescribe the Member's products and/or services. The nature of and the conditions attaching to a Member's support of a Third Party Educational Event must be properly documented in writing.

**2.5.4** In accordance with Section 2.7 (Research and Educational Grants), Members may only support attendance of HCPs at Third Party Educational Events through provision of Educational Grants to:

(a) the organizer of the Third Party Educational Event to defray the costs of running the Third Party Educational Event and/or to support attendance of HCPs at the Third Party Educational Event;

(b) a Professional Association or Health Care Institution to support attendance of HCPs at the Third Party Educational Event; provided that the recipient of the Grant makes an independent decision on selection of the attending HCPs.

**2.5.5** Without limiting Section 2.5.4, Member support of Third Party Educational Events shall be limited to funding:





(a) the purchase of advertising and leasing of booth space for displays and promotional activities at the Third Party Educational Event;

(b) the holding of satellite symposia at the Third Party Educational Event;

(c) registration fees to the Third Party Educational Event;

(d) reasonable travel to, and modest accommodation at, the Third Party Educational Event where out-of-town travel is required;

(e) incidental meals and refreshments, provided the meals and refreshments are modest in value and are subordinate in time and focus to the educational purpose of the Third Party Educational Event.

**2.5.6** Members shall neither:

(a) arrange, pay for, offer to pay for, or otherwise reimburse the expenses of any individual HCP to attend or speak at a Third Party Educational Event; nor

(b) select, or influence the selection of, any HCP to attend a Third Party Educational Event, whether as a delegate or as faculty.

# **2.6 Member Organized or/and Supported Medical Technology Training and Education (both inperson/virtual programs)**

2.6.1 Members may provide or support training and education to HCPs on product-specific technology deployment, use, and application to facilitate the safe and effective use of medical devices and diagnostics technologies. Members may also provide or support education to HCPs on topics concerning or associated with the use of their medical devices and diagnostics technologies, in accordance with their registered scope of business in Vietnam.

Training and education shall be conducted by qualified personnel, which may include Member personnel with appropriate technical expertise or personnel of an independent, reputable, professional third party.

2.6.2 Training and education programs shall be conducted in appropriate venues that are conducive to the transmission of education and training and are selected based on their suitability for the proposed program and for the convenience of attendees. Appropriate venues may include the HCP's premises, the Member's premises, or other clinical, laboratory, educational, or conference training facilities (including hotel conference rooms), depending on the nature of the program. The venue must not be selected because of its entertainment, leisure, or recreational facilities.

2.6.3 To assist HCPs attending Member's organized training and education programs, Members may fund the costs of individual HCPs' reasonable travel, modest accommodation, and incidental, modest meals, and refreshments. Members shall not provide, pay for, or arrange for recreation or entertainment for participating HCPs, nor shall Members provide, pay for, or arrange for travel, accommodation, meals, or refreshments of spouses or other guests of participating HCPs.

# 2.7. Research and Educational Grant

A Member may provide research and educational grants provided that the Member:

- Adopts objective criteria for providing the grants;
- Implements appropriate procedures to ensure that grants are not conditional on the use, recommendation, purchase, or prescription of the Member's products and services; and





• Ensures that the recipient of the grant makes an independent decision on application of the grant and/or selection of any beneficiary of the grant.

Research grants may only be used to support independent medical research with scientific merit or health care policy development, provided that such activities have well-defined objectives and milestones.

Educational grants may only be made to advance patient care, for medical education of medical students, fellows participating in fellowship programs, or other medical personnel, or for educating the public on health care issues.

In reference to section 2.5 – Member Support of Third Party Educational Events, a member may provide an educational grant to:

- (1) The organizer of the Third Party Educational Event to defray the costs of running the Third Party Educational Event and/or to support attendance of HCPs at the Third Party Educational Event.
- (2) A Healthcare Institution to support attendance of HCPs at the Third Party Educational Events; and/or
- (3) A Professional Association to support attendance of HCPs at the Third Party Educational Events.

in which, the following controls shall be maintained:

- i. All request must come officially in written from a recognized Event Organizer, HCO, Healthcare Institution, or Professional Association, and not from any individual.
- ii. A Member shall not issue any invitation to a Hospital/Healthcare Institution to attend such events
- iii. A Member shall ensure that the grant provided is legitimate and at fair market value.
- iv. A Member may provide a suggested list of the key professional Medical education/events organized by a 3<sup>rd</sup> party while ensuring no influence on the selection of any specific HCP occurs.
- v. A Member may not assist in any arrangement of logistics for such requests.
- vi. Educational grants provided shall by documented in a legal agreement between the Member and the Event organizer/Healthcare Institution, which reserves to the Member audit rights and requires the recipient to provide the actual spending/usage of the fund to the Member upon request.
- vii. Educational grants shall be made by bank transfer to the bank account of the Event organizer/Healthcare Institution/Professional Association based on their request.

#### 2.8 Charitable Donations

Members may make donations of money, products, or services for charitable or other philanthropic purposes, or sponsor events where the proceeds are intended for charitable purposes, unless the donations are prohibited under applicable laws and/or codes of conduct.

Charitable donations are not to be used as a marketing tool, and must not be targeted to HCPs, nor shall they be used as an encouragement or as a reward for a HCP/HCO using, recommending, purchasing, or prescribing a Member's products or services.

Charitable donations shall only be made for charitable purposes to bona fide non-profit entities and charitable organizations as determined by Vietnamese laws, and shall not be made based on the





recommendation of any HCP and/or Government Official. Charitable Donations are prohibited to be given directly to individuals.

All charitable donations shall be appropriately documented.

# 2.9 Market research

Research is initiated and intended to answer legitimate scientific questions about the efficacy, safety, efficiency or utilization of products, or otherwise to advance the science in members therapy areas. Research is not conducted as a means to promote products and/or therapies, or to reward individuals or organizations for past, present, or future business.

All scientific research must be conducted consistent with applicable regulations in Vietnam.

# 2.10 Product information

Product information and claims must be presented with a high ethical standard, in compliance with the latest product information approved by the Ministry of Health (Vietnam Medical Device and Medical Construction Department), and in such a way as not to be misleading or ambiguous.

# 2.10.1 Product information to HCP in medical journals

The contents of the product information and/or product advertising provided to HCP must satisfy the requirements of the Medical Device information and advertisement regulations issued by the Ministry of Health (Vietnam Medical Device and Medical Construction Department), and shall only be issued in respect of Medical Devices that have received a 5 year Medical Device License and/or Import License.

# 2.10.2 Contents of product information

The contents of the product information provided to an HCP must satisfy the requirements of the Medical Device information (Decree 43 of Labeling and Decree 36 for Medical Device) and the advertisement regulation issued by the Ministry of Health.

Printed material must be presented in a legible manner. Information and claims for pharmaceutical products must be true, accurate, clear, and objective, as substantiated by scientific evidence. Information and claims must also be presented with a high ethical standard, in compliance with the Ministry of Health authorized product information, and in such a way that is not misleading or ambiguous.

# 3. Product quality commitment

The reputation and sustainable development of Members are based or shall be based on the highest quality of their products as well as integrated services, to enable HCPs to provide their patients with the best possible results from the use of such products.

Hence, all members commit to compliance with the quality and safety standards prescribed by the relevant laws and regulations.

Members must take action immediately to withdraw non-qualified products and must try their best with mitigating actions as well as corrective actions whenever identifying problems caused through nonqualified products or integrated services.

# 4. Trade promotion

This Code does not restrain or regulate commercial trade terms and/or trade promotion activities in accordance with Vietnamese law for the supply of medical devices and diagnostics. The Members encourage healthy competition among companies. Trade promotion must be in line with applicable laws and must not be misused as a means of improper inducement.





# 5. Fair competition in doing business

Members are entitled to freedom of competition in accordance with the laws of Vietnam.

Competition must be implemented on the principles of honesty, fairness, and non-infringement upon legitimate rights and interests of other companies and consumers.

# 6. <u>Trainings</u>

Members are responsible for

- Oversight of the Members' compliance with this Code.
- Effective communication of the Code to its employees, contractors and third party intermediaries on ethical conduct for interactions with HCPs.

# 7. Monitoring & Controlling

#### 7.1 General principles

Companies should establish and maintain appropriate procedures to ensure compliance with relevant codes and applicable laws and to review and monitor all of their activities and materials in that regard.

To promote compliance with the MDDSC Code of Ethics, the Member companies will proactively monitor the practices of other companies regarding compliance with the Code. Any complaints should be submitted to the MDDSC Secretariat and handled by the EuroCham appointed Board member and/or a law firm/audit firm as an independent and competent 3<sup>rd</sup> party with consultancy from the Business Ethics Working Group.

#### 7.2 Controlling mechanism

In case of a complaint, Member companies should file an official complaint in writing stating the identity of the company, reference material, along with copies of all necessary documents and evidence and submit the same to the EuroCham MDDSC Secretariat. EuroCham MDDSC Secretariat shall submit the complaint to EuroCham appointed Board member. EuroCham appointed Board member and the Business Ethics Working Group shall review and consider documents from EuroCham MDDSC Secretariat, determine whether a breach of the Code has occurred. Depending on severity of the breach, a law firm/audit firm could be involved if necessary.

EuroCham appointed Board member and Business Ethics WG could ask for official information back from the company compliance representative and its General Manager. With these information, and advices from the Business Ethics Working Group, EuroCham appointed Board member and the MDDSC Chair/ MDDSC authorised Board member will have final decision on the complaint, including the types of sanctions to be applied. Conflicts of interest shall be considered in the process of review and decision making.

Based on the severity, circumstance and frequency of the breach, actions that may be taken by the MDDSC Board as sanctions against Member in breach, such as the following:

- (i) Request the Member in breach to issue a written undertaking that the practice complained of will be discontinued on or before a date to be determined by the MDDSC Board.
- (ii) Suspend the membership of the Member in breach for no more than 3 years.





# 8. Management of the Code

The MDDSC General Assembly will review the operation and effectiveness of the Code at regular intervals of not more than five (5) calendar years. The ad-hoc review of the Code will be conducted under the direction of the MDDSC Board and Business Ethics Working Group.

This Code may be amended by vote of at least two-thirds of MDDSC Members presenting and entitled to vote at a Meeting, properly convened and held, or via written confirmation.





# European Chamber of Commerce in Vietnam Medical Devices & Diagnostics Sector Committee Code of Ethical Conduct for Interaction with HCPs FAO

These FAQ provide Members and other parties who will need to apply the Code with guidance:

- On how the Code is implemented;
- On how to interpret certain of the provisions of the Code; and
- To help Members better understand what the Code means in various practical scenarios.

# **General Questions**

# 1. Is this Code aligned with the Vietnamese laws/APACMed Code?

This Code is subject to the laws of Vietnam. If a provision in law is more restrictive than the corresponding provision in this Code, the Member shall adhere to the more restrictive provision in the law.

This Code is in line with APACMed Code, legal reviewed by APACMed.

# 2. Is this Code applied for companies' business activities outside of EuroCham and/or all EuroCham members?

This Code is applied for all EuroCham MDDSC Members' business activities in Vietnam including members' third-party intermediaries (including consultants, distributors, sales agents, and brokers).

3. If company has its own global policy on HCP interactions, here and there, there may be a duplicate/ differences between this Code and the company's policies. In case of difference between this Code and internal policies and the company have to follow their own policies, does this affects somehow to their positions within MDDSC?

According to Section B of the Code, the more stringent rules shall be applied.

# **About Virtual and Hybrid Interactions**

# 1. What are Virtual interactions?

Virtual interactions involve attendees participating in a virtual environment that is generally enabled by digital technology rather than meeting in a physical location. These activities may take place through various means and media. Such virtual interactions may include webinars and other online training and educational programs that allow for the transmission of either live or recorded lectures and discussions and the display of written and video contents.

# 2. What are Hybrid interactions?

Hybrid interactions typically provides for both physical and virtual participation experiences. Hybrid interactions are primarily organized as usual face-to-face interactions with additional arrangements made to make it possible for some participants to attend and participate remotely using digital tools and applications.





#### About Section D.2.1: Cultural Gifts, Event Stationeries, and Educational Support Items

1. Is it also applied for giving gift in some major festive events of Vietnam which are considered as Vietnam official cultural events such as Tet Holiday, New Year's Eve, Christmas and Mid-Autumn?

According to provision 2.1.1. under Section D of the Code, gifts may never directly or indirectly be given to an HCP or HCO. This prohibition of gifts includes the following:

(a) Items which are neither educational nor patient related (e.g. office supplies, scrubs, electronic equipment capable of personal use, mugs), even if of minimal value, and irrespective whether such items are branded (with a company or product name or logo) or not;

(b) Cultural courtesies such as cookies, wine, tobacco, flowers, chocolates, gift baskets, holiday gifts or cash/cash equivalents (e.g. gift cards, vouchers), irrespective of the occasion (e.g. major life events such as birthday, birth, wedding, demise, etc).

# 2. What is the definition of the appropriate venue since it's mentioned as a condition in all interactions with HCPs and/or government official i.e. in business meals with HCPs, in supporting third party education event (including educational grant), in members' product training events?

The venue is considered as appropriate for members' business meals, members' organized or third parties' organized the scientific/educational meeting / training shall meet the followings:

- ✓ Be modest reasonable & not extravagant
- ✓ Be appropriate and conducive to the exchange of scientific information appropriate for training and education purposes with adequate facilities, including security and sanitary conditions
- ✓ Accessibility Location should be easily accessible, taking into account the residential locations and/or countries of origin of HCPs

Examples of inappropriate venue: resort, gaming (casino), leisure location (e.g. golf club, karaoke, bar, beer restaurants)

#### 3. What if another company violates this provision, can any action be taken?

According to provision 7.2. under Section D of the Code, Member companies could file an official complaint in writing stating the identity of the company, reference material against Member in breach to the MDDSC Secretariat. Following the complaint handling process and decision, MDDSC Board can take actions against the Member in breach.

# **About Section D.2.8: Charitable Donations**

# 1. Can Health Care Organization and Professional Association/Society receive the Charitable Donation?

According to provision 2.8. under Section D of the Code, Charitable Donations can be made for charitable purposes to bona fide non-profit entities and charitable organizations as determined by Vietnamese laws.





# 2. Can Health Care Organization and Professional Association/Society send to Member the request Letter to ask for a Charitable Donation?

All charitable donations shall be appropriately documented. Charitable Donations can be made based on the written request of Bona fide non-profit entities and charitable organizations.

About Section 2.5: Member Support of Third Party Educational Events (both inperson/virtual events)

# 1. What is a Third Party Educational Event?

A Third Party Educational Event is a conference or meeting that is of a medical, scientific, and/or educational nature, intended to promote scientific knowledge, medical advancement, and/or the delivery of effective health care, and organized by a Professional Association, HCO, or by a bona fide medical or other professional education provider.

# 2. What alternative means are available for Members to support Third Party Educational Events?

Under the Code, Members may not select nor directly sponsor - or influence the selection of an individual HCP to attend or speak at a Third Party Educational Event (with the limited exception of Member involvement in the planning and execution of Satellite Meetings, as discussed below). However, Members may continue to support HCP education in other ways.

Members may provide Education Grants to:

- the organizer of a Third Party Educational Event to defray the costs of running the Third Party Educational Event and/or to support attendance of HCPs at the Third Party Educational Event;
- an HCO to support attendance of HCPs at a Third Party Educational Event;
- a Professional Association to support attendance of HCPs at a Third Party Educational Event; and/or
- a bona fide administrative intermediary platform that is involved or otherwise assists in the management of medical conferences.

Such grants by Members may cover the costs associated with HCPs' attendance at Third Party Educational Events. These costs may include modest accommodation expenses where out-of-town travel is required, reasonable travel expenses, registration fees, and incidental meals and refreshments. Members are not permitted to select – or influence the selection of – an individual HCP to receive these benefits under an Education Grant. Members may not book HCP travel or make other logistics arrangements associated with the attendance of HCPs at Third Party Educational Events, except as otherwise discussed in the Code and these FAQ. Finally, Members may continue to support Third Party Educational Events for the following purposes, in line with appropriate contractual agreements:

- advertising and leasing of booth space for displays and promotional activities; and
- Satellite Symposia.
- **3.** Are Members allowed to propose or recommend individual HCPs as faculty to Third Party Educational Event organizers?





Yes. However, Members are not permitted to seek to inappropriately influence the program content, selection of faculty, educational methods, or materials at the Third Party Educational Event. While Members may recommend faculty for the main agenda of a Third Party Educational Event, the ultimate decision of which faculty to invite must remain with the organizer of the Third Party Educational Event. Note that as discussed below, when a Member is sponsoring a Satellite Symposium as part of the program at a Third Party Educational Event, the Member may select the speakers, panelists, or other faculty at the Satellite Symposium.

# 4. Are Members permitted to arrange or pay for travel for an individual HCP to attend a Third Party Educational Event, either as faculty or as a delegate?

No. Members are not permitted to arrange, directly pay for, or reimburse the expenses of any individual HCP to attend or speak at a Third Party Educational Event. However, a grant may be provided to appropriate organizations to support the attendance of HCPs at the Third Party Educational Event and may support certain expenses associated with individual HCP participation as faculty at Member-organized Satellite Symposia.

# 5. Can Members engage an HCP as a consultant to speak at an international Third Party Educational Event and pay their associated expenses?

Members must not arrange, directly pay for, nor reimburse to individual HCPs the costs of travel, accommodation, nor meals and refreshments. In addition, Members must not influence the selection of faculty.

# 6. What are "satellite symposia"?

Satellite Symposia are generally organized by Members that have a presence (e.g., a booth) at, or that have otherwise supported, the Third Party Educational Event. Although the Member is responsible for the content of the Satellite Symposium, these programs may be subject to the Third-Party Educational Event organizer's application and approval process. While Satellite Symposia are generally included on the agenda of the Third-Party Educational Event and associated promotional materials, these are Member-conducted events. Members should be transparent in promoting these as such.

# About Section 2.6: Member Organized or/and Supported Medical Technology Training and Education

**1.** Are Members permitted to organize their own training and education events and select and meet the costs of attendance of HCPs at those events?

Yes. The Code's prohibition of direct HCP sponsorships only impacts Third Party Educational Events.

2. Are Members permitted to organize training and education events in conjunction with HCOs and Professional Associations and select and meet the costs of attendance of HCPs at those events?





Yes. A Member-organized training and education event may be co-sponsored or jointly organized with an appropriately qualified organization such as an HCO, Professional Association, or bona fide training provider. Contributions and costs should be shared fairly and equitably between the parties organizing the event.

# **About Local Distributors**

In situation where local distributors takes the main role to execute all activities including interactions with HCPs and/or GO on behalf of members in Vietnam (e.g. local distributor organize event and engage HCP for speaker service, or local distributor provide educational grant to hospital....).

# **1.** Is it required local distributor to adhere to MDD Code of Ethical Conducts in the interactions with HCPs and/or Government Officials in Vietnam?

The MDD Code of Ethical Conducts is applicable to all members and its third party intermediates including distributors, it's the must that the local distributor adhere to the MDD Code Of Ethical Conduct in the all interactions with HCPs and/or Government Officials on behalf of members in Vietnam.

# 2. In case if local distributors of members have query, who should they contact?

In case local distributors of members have any query, they should proactively contact members for guidance. Further, according to the Code section 6, members are responsibilities for: (i) Oversight of the members' compliance with this Code and (ii) Effective communication of the Code to its employees, contractors and third-party intermediaries.

# **About Data Privacy**

# **1.** In scientific events with medical staff and patients, in case members collect personal information, what regulations should be observed?

Members need to comply with Vietnam's laws, including but not limited to the Law on Cybersecurity (2018) and the Decree on Personal Data Protection.